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City of Beaufort 
Parking Management and Enforcement Services (RFP 2015-102) 

Answers to Questions Submitted by September 17, 2014  

1. Does the City pay directly for the communication cost on the multi-space and single 
space meters or does the vendor pay? 

Answer: The Operator is responsible for all operating costs necessary to successfully 
perform Parking Management and Enforcement Services which includes communication 
cost.  The Operator collects and deposits all revenues, and deducts all expenses, 
providing the City with the net each month.  In the event that there is a deficiency 
caused by a City Council decision to modify parking revenues for things such as holiday 
parking and it causes a monthly deficiency; the Operator will submit an invoice to the 
City in the amount of the deficiency. 

2. Does the City pay directly for EMS fees on the Pay Stations as well as fees associated 
with the IPS meters for back office, gateway, and Credit Card transactional costs? 

Answer: As mentioned in answer to question #1, the Operator is responsible for all 
operating costs as the City receives the net revenue after all operating costs of the 
Operator are factored in. 

3. Is the current office located at 210A Scott Street leased by the City or the Current 
Operator? 

Answer: 210A Scott Street is currently leased by the current Operator.  Though the 
Operator is not restricted to that location and is free to obtain other office space within 
the downtown district. 

4. Can the current monthly rent for that space be provided for budget purposes if it is to 
be utilized by a new Operator? 

Answer: The current monthly rent for 210A Scott Street is $1,100.00.  The current 
Operator may end the lease with a 30 day term notification.  It is at the sole discretion 
of the property owner whether a new Operator, if chosen, can utilize this space. 

5. Are the revenues deposited in a City bank account or Operator bank account? 

Answer:  The revenues are deposited into the Operator’s bank account. 

6. What is the cost of a monthly parking permit? 

Answer:  $35 per month. 

7. What is the criteria/process to obtain a monthly permit? 

Answer:  Apply in person at the Park Beaufort office or apply online via the current 
Operator’s website. 
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8. For special events, does the City reimburse the Operator any additional expenses 
incurred as a result of the Operator preparing and staffing for the event; is there a 
special event rate charged by the Operator? 

Answer:  As the City receives the net revenue after all operating costs of the Operator 
are factored in, there is no need for a reimbursement of additional costs.  There is no 
special event rate. 

9. Is the City interested in handheld ticket writers? If yes, how many each year? 

Answer: It is up to each Proposer what type of parking equipment is required to 
successfully provide Parking Management and Enforcement Services.  Proposers should 
include all necessary equipment in their proposal and list the estimated “Equipment 
Cost” in Exhibit #4 – “Cost of Services Proposal Form” when submitting their proposal. 

10. Does the City own any of the equipment at the Parking Offices (coin sorter, furniture, 
computers, etc.)? 

Answer:  The City owns most of the equipment at the current Operator’s office.  The 
current Operator owns the computers and printers they use.  Here is a list of City owned 
equipment: 

Description Quantity 

Coin Sorter 
Bill counter 
Safes 
File Cabinets 
Desk Systems (cubical walls with desk) 
DVR-TV Screen 
Security Camera 
Storage Cabinet 

 
1 
1 
2 
2 
3 
1 
2 
1 
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11. How many parking tickets were issued in 2010-2013 and how many are outstanding 
from each year? 

Answer:   

Parking Tickets Per Fiscal Year       

  Issued Outstanding Outstanding Owed 

FY ending 2010 (12/9/11-6/30/10) 5137 1120  $                 33,684.50  

FY ending 2011 8684 1573                     33,075.00  

FY ending 2012 9863 1532                     33,325.00  

FY ending 2013 9760 1840                     39,370.00  

FY ending 2014 8604 2532                     59,100.00  

  42048 8597  $              198,554.50  

12. What was the range of fines for the tickets issued in 2013? 

Answer:   

Description Initial Fine Penalty after 30 days 

NO PARKING SIGNS $50 $100 

NO PARKING AT YELLOW PAINTED CURB $50 $100 

HANICAP PARKING $400 $400 

30 MINUTE PARKING EXPIRED $15 $30 

3 HOUR PARKING EXPIRED $15 $30 

BOOT $50 $100 

TOWING $100 $200 

LOADING ZONES $50 $125 

PARKING ON WRONG SIDE OF THE STREET $25 $100 

DOUBLE PARKED $25 $50 

BLOCKING DRIVEWAY $50 $125 

BLOCKING FIRE HYDRANT $75 $125 

2 HOUR PARKING EXPIRED $15 $30 

4 HOUR PARKING EXPIRED $15 $30 

PARKING OUTSIDE OF LANE $15 $30 

RESERVED PARKING $50 $100 

ILLEGAL PARKING $25 $50 

EXPIRED METER $10 $20 

BUS AND BOAT/TRAILER $100 $200 
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13. What was the range of penalties for tickets issued in 2013? 

Answer:  Refer to answer of #12. 

14. What was the total number of unpaid tickets in 2013? 

Answer:  Refer to answer of #11. 

15. What was the total number of unpaid tickets from 2010-2012? 

Answer:  Refer to answer of #11. 

16. Number of persons assigned exclusively to issuing parking tickets? 

Answer:  Two people are exclusively assigned to issuing parking tickets.  

17. Number of locations where persons who issue parking tickets report? 

Answer:  They report to one location, the Main Office located at 210A Scott Street. 

18. Number of locations where parking tickets may be paid? 

Answer:  Parking tickets can be paid in person at the Main Office at 210A Scott Street.  
Parking tickets can also be paid at citation boxes, online via our current Operator’s 
website, or via telephone. 

19. What software program (database) do you currently use to track parking tickets? 

Answer:  The software system used by our current Operator is Clancy System. 

20. How many people need access to the software? 

Answer:  That will be a determination of the provider with their system. 

21. Do you mail delinquent violation notices?  If yes, how many notices are currently 
required to be mailed by the Operator and what is the current notice schedule? 

Answer:  Yes.  Two notices per unpaid citation as per State Law and City Code. 

22. How do you currently obtain registered owner name and address information? 

Answer: The City’s Police Department personnel were providing this data to the 
Operator, but the City is interested in other methods that proposers have experience in. 

23. Are you interested in outsourcing your data entry work (ticket entry and/or payment 
processing)? 

Answer:  No 
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24. Who is the Merchant of Record on the Pay Stations and Meters that accept Credit 
Cards? 

Answer:  1st Data 

25. Please provide the average percentage of Credit Card and Cash revenues over the last 
12 months for the single space and multi-space meters. 

Answer:   

% Credit Card Paystations IPS Meters 

FY 2013 30% 26% 

FY 2014 34% 25% 

 

% Cash Paystations IPS Meters 

FY 2013 70% 74% 

FY 2014 66% 75% 

 
26. Are the Current IPS Meters part of a pilot program? If not, when were they installed? 

Answer:  No, they are not part of a Pilot program.  82 IPS meters were purchased by the 
City and installed in early fiscal year 2014.  An additional 5 IPS meters are being 
purchased in the next couple of weeks with the plan to eventually replace all meters 
with IPS meters in the heavily trafficked areas. 

27. Please provide current meter collection schedule. 

Answer:  As stated in the RFP, the collection of single space meters and pay stations are 
required to be done at least twice a week and before the meter is 95% full to ensure no 
downtime. 

28. Does the City desire if a new Operator is chosen for current staff to be considered for 
employment? If so, please provide the current pay rates for hourly staff. 

Answer:  No, the current parking personnel are employed by our current provider. 

29. Is there an independent adjudicator prior to an appeal going to Municipal Court? 

Answer:  No, the first level of appeal is the Parking Manager. 
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30. Is an outside adjudicator used for any part of the appeal process? If so, who pays this 
cost? 

Answer:  There is no outside adjudicator. 

31. Are the single space and multi-space meters under warranty? 

Answer:  Pay Stations are currently under an extended warranty.  IPS meters are still 
under a one year manufacturer warranty until September 30, 2014. 

32. What is the City’s current collection rate on the parking citations that are being issued? 

Answer:  78.2% 

33. What is the approximate revenue value of all unpaid parking citations that make up the 
City’s existing backlog? 

Answer:  Refer to answer of #11. 

34. Does the City currently issue warning tickets? If yes, what are the criteria/policy for 
issuing one? 

Answer:  No warning tickets are issued. 

35. Does the current Operator have a dedicated money count room for all on-street 
revenue collected? 

Answer: Yes 

36. Please provide the last five years of the vendor’s actual expenses by line item. 

Answer: 

Expenses           

Park Beaufort FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 

  (12/09-6/10) (7/10-6/11) (7/11-6/12) (7/12-6/13) (7/13-6/14) 

Payroll  $       75,942.12   $  130,858.15   $  138,700.39   $  145,373.68   $  147,039.16  

Operating Expenses            24,235.24          19,156.15          28,424.07          31,163.35          34,316.61  

R&M                 501.85          12,345.13          21,163.91          13,525.88          17,444.29  

Insurance            13,817.79          23,746.14          24,161.70          23,484.39          20,754.95  

Admin Expenses            27,591.00          62,552.34          67,114.10          65,439.95          77,694.57  

Total Expenses  $     142,088.00   $  248,657.91   $  279,564.17   $  278,987.25   $  297,249.58  
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37. Please kindly provide the last five years’ revenue by location (each lot as well as On-
Street parking) by category (example: parking permits, meter revenue, citation 
revenues, etc.). 

Answer: 
 

Revenue           

Park Beaufort FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 

  (12/09-6/10) (7/10-6/11) (7/11-6/12) (7/12-6/13) (7/13-6/14) 

Monthly Parking  $       13,439.62   $     28,445.00   $     33,395.00   $     36,662.50   $     38,409.11  

Meter         111,295.90        134,307.92        166,769.88        141,354.42        161,204.65  

Paystation Revenue                           -          181,027.55        140,566.17        138,439.32        148,750.96  

Validation                           -              1,908.40            7,659.15          11,358.96            8,123.80  

Violation            20,304.25          66,750.99          81,787.00          86,401.70          89,254.22  

Boot Fee Income                           -                           -                  850.00                150.00                         -    

Returned Check Fees                           -                           -              1,101.40                         -                           -    

Total Expenses  $     145,039.77   $  412,439.86   $  432,128.60   $  414,366.90   $  445,742.74  

 
38. Will the City maintain the Merchant Services account for credit card processing, or is 

this the responsibility of the parking Operator? 

Answer:  This is a responsibility of the parking Operator. 

39. Will the City provide any historical data for parking revenues and citation collections? 

Answer: Refer to answers of #11 and #38. 

40. In lieu of the requested Bid Bond, will the City accept a company check in the amount of 
5% of the total annual management fee? 

Answer: As stipulated in the RFP, Section VIII (2) (ii) (j), a Bid Bond of 5% of the 
Management Fee is required.  No other alternatives will be allowed. 

41. Is the parking office on Scott Street provided to the parking Operator by the City?  Or do 
parking Operators need to factor office rent into our budget? 

Answer:  Refer to answer of #4. 

42. Besides the spare parts and inventory for meters and pay stations detailed in Exhibit 3, 
is there any other equipment (furniture, computers, vehicles, technology, etc.) that 
belongs to the City and would be available to the next parking Operator?  

Answer:  Refer to answer of #10. 
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43. From Section II. Specifications & Scope of Services (A,iii-page 6 of 33) related pre-
employment drug testing.  Does the City require a certain level of drug testing (i.e. 9 
panel or more) and is the cost of both background checks and drug testing to be 
considered a company cost or a cost passed on to the City through normal and 
customary expenses?  

Answer:  The City is requiring the Operator to have their employees drug tested. The 
City currently uses a 5 panel test for their employees.  As mentioned earlier, the 
Operator is responsible for all operating costs as the City receives the net revenue after 
all operating costs of the Operator are factored in.  This includes the cost of both 
background checks and drug testing.   

44. From Section II. Specifications & Scope of Services (A,v-page 7 of 33) regarding manager 
certification.  Can the City be more specific in regards to the certification requirements? 

Answer: Section A.v. states that the ‘Manager shall be trained in the Company’s 
corporate management training program and be certified by the Company as 
competent to perform the duties required by the position.’  The Company certifies the 
competency of their Manager based on their corporate management criteria. 

45. From Section VIII, Submission Requirements, (2, ii, g-Cost of Services Proposal page 15 
of 33), regarding the cost of services proposal form.  Is it the City’s requirement to only 
accept the Cost of Services Proposal form for each year of the 5 year term or can 
proposers submit a 5 year line item budget in lieu of the Cost of Services Proposal form? 

Answer:  The form provided in the RFP is the required format for each year. 

46. From Section VIII, Submission Requirements, (2, ii, g-Cost of Services Proposal page 15 
of 33), regarding monthly management fee and incentive proposal.  Request is to 
provide what percentage of all gross revenue would be charged as the monthly 
management fee but proposal form (exhibit 4) does not have an area to submit 
percentage.  The form only allows for the annual cost to be submitted nor is there area 
to submit incentive proposal.  How would the City prefer for these to be submitted?  

Answer:  For each of the five years, indicate the percentage for the management fee on 
the bottom of each page and identify as such.  Those choosing to submit an incentive 
proposal should provide a separate “Cost of Services Proposal Form” for each of the five 
years, indicating at the top of the form “Incentive Proposal”  The incentive proposal will 
outline revenue or operational cost savings sharing between the Company and the City 
resulting from the Company’s improved and efficient management of the parking 
system.  The incentive proposal may also identify additional services that the Company 
would provide the City resulting from increased revenues or operational cost savings. 
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47. From Section VIII, Submission Requirements, (2, X-Evaluation process and selection 
criteria page 17 of 33) per RFP, evaluation committee will make recommendation to City 
Manager of the lowest responsible bidder.  Is City Manager responsible for final decision 
or City Council?  

Answer:  The recommendation of the Committee is provided to the City Manager, who 
presents that recommendation, upon his concurrence, to the City Council for approval 
and award.  Therefore, the City Council makes the final decision to approve and award 
the contract.  As stated in the RFP, “Offerors are specifically directed not to contact any 
other City personnel, including City Council members for meetings, conferences, or 
technical discussions related to this request unless otherwise stated in this RFP.  Failure 
to adhere to this policy may be grounds for rejection of your proposal.”   

48. Can the City please provide a copy of the current management agreement between 
Beaufort and Lanier?   

Answer:  Please see attached Exhibit #5.  

49. Can the City please provide a copy of the revenues and expenses for the last three 
years? 

Answer:  Refer to answers of #37 and #38. 

50. Can the City please a copy of the current staffing schedule or staffing expectations? 

Answer: Staffing schedule of the current provider includes one full time manager and 
one full time assistant manager working Monday through Friday, and 2 part time 
enforcement officers working Monday through Saturday.  Proposers are to provide their 
staffing schedules that they believe will be sufficient to enforce and manage the Parking 
system. 

51. Can the City please provide previous staffing expectations for special events such as the 
Shrimp Festival?  

Answer: The current Operator provides the staff necessary to facilitate the entire 
parking process during the events.  This includes directing vehicles for loading and 
unloading to avoid blocking streets; setting up cones; and facilitating everything 
necessary to make sure parking is expedient and compliable. 

52. Is the current Operator’s office space located on Scott Avenue provided by the City, 
privately leased or leased from the City? If leased from the City, what is the monthly 
rent? 

Answer:  Refer to answer #4 
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53. Since the Operator will be responsible for removing pay stations and meters during 
declared mandatory evacuations, please provide the following: 

a. History of declared mandatory evacuations for the past 5 years. 
b. Steps the City takes prior to mandatory evacuations – i.e. timeframe between 

declaration of voluntary evacuation and mandatory evacuations.  Required to 
determine if there is sufficient time allotted to safely remove and store the 
equipment. 

Answer:  There have been no declared mandatory evacuations during the past 5 
years.  The City has an Emergency Disaster Policy and Procedure.  The City Manager 
authorizes the Emergency Operations Captain to administer, direct and monitor 
procedures.  As part of that plan, the City follows an increased readiness plan with 5 
stages that is coordinated with the County and the State Emergency Management 
Centers with OPCON I, the last stage, as the evacuation stage.  During OPCON III, the 
City Manager or the Emergency Operations Captain notify all affected employees 
and outsourced vendors of the potential emergency.  Personnel are in standby 
mode during this OPCON level.  Once the State or County Emergency Management 
Center issue a full alert, OPCON II is put in place.  This is the ready to implement 
stage and steps and procedures necessary to protect City assets are followed.  Each 
department and outsourced service has their own plan at what steps need to be 
taken at each OPCON Level.  The Emergency Operations Capitan will coordinate 
with the Operator to ensure that their procedures are updated and in place. 
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54. Does the current Operator utilize a computerized hand held ticket issuance system? 

a. If so please provide the name of the equipment and/or software provider, 
b. If so is the system interfaced with South Carolina DMV? 
c. Are there DMV holds issued for non-payment of violations? 
d. Is there a collections process for delinquent out of state license plates issued 

violations?  If not, is there a backlog of unpaid violations and what is the amount 
currently owed the City? 

e. Including spares, how many hand held units are in use? 

Answer:  The Current operator uses the Clancy Systems Parking Citation machines, 
Samsung Galaxy Phones (2) that are leased monthly from Clancy systems.  They do 
not utilize an interface with the South Carolina DMV or national DMV searches.  
They issue DMV holds for non-payment of violations when allowed by state or local 
governing authority.  Their process for collections is the same for in state and out of 
state violators; utilizing notices.  Out of State delinquent tickets are as follows: 

Parking Tickets Per Fiscal Year Out of State Outstanding 

FY 2010 (December 2009 through June 30, 2010) 

FY ending 2011 

FY ending 2012 

FY ending 2013 

FY ending 2014 

TOTAL 

$6,893.00 

8,385.00 

10,035.00 

12,480.00 

17,895.00 

$55,688.00 

55. Are there any current validation programs between the City and the merchants on Bay 
Street? 

Answer:  During the holiday season between Thanksgiving and Christmas the City has 
historically provided incentive programs that enhance merchant activity.  This program 
is coordinated through Main Street Beaufort.  Merchants may request certain parking 
space(s) on specific days for a daily parking rate of $10-$15 per space.  Rate is $10 per 
space per day if space is used for service and delivery only.  If space is used for a Special 
Event, rate is $15 per space per day. 
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56. Are there any capital projects scheduled which may negatively impact parking revenues 
(e.g. street closures, sidewalk replacements, streetscape beautification)? 

Answer:  The only City capital projects on the 1-3 year plan that may impact parking 
revenues  at the Marina Parking lot, are the projects related to the Transient Dock and 
Day Dock.  At this time, there are no other planned City capital projects that would 
negatively impact parking revenues.  

57. Please clarify that the total number of spaces is 398. 

Answer:  The correct number of parking spaces per street/lot including the number of 
meters and paystations are as follows: 

Street/Lot IPS POM Paystation Parking Spaces 

     
Bay 58 11 0 82 

West 7 4 0 17 

Port Republic 2 2 0 7 

Craven 7 20 0 37 

Charles 1 15 0 20 

New Castle 0 4 0 8 

Scott 10 0 0 10 

Carteret 12 10 0 26 

Saltus Lot 0 4 0 7 

Marina 7 0 6 170 

Scott Lot 0 0 1 28 

Library Lot 0 0 2 19 

Marina Playground 0 0 2 13 

TOTAL 104 70 11 444 

 



Exhibit #5












































